QA-618
Wolcott-Schiwy House
616 Wye Mills Road
Wye Mills vicinity
Queen Anne’s County

Constructed circa 1880, circa 1900, and circa 1970
Private

Located approximately one-quarter mile northwest of the Talbot County town of Wye
Mills, the house and outbuildings stand on the west side of Wye Mills Road in Queen
Anne’s County. Built circa 1900 with a major addition made circa 1970, the two-story,
five-bay, frame, side-gable house features a two-story, full-width, Colonial Revival-style
front porch. A two-story, frame wing extends to the west from the north elevation. One
historic outbuilding, four non-historic outbuildings, and a non-historic swimming pool

stand west and south of the house.

The Wolcott-Schiwy House illustrates the importance of agriculture in Queen Anne’s
County history and is an example of a small farm that has been operated by tenants as
well as by owners. In 1896, Charles and Elizabeth Wolcott purchased the farm and
added to the existing tenant house. During most of the first half of the twentieth century,
the farmhouse was owner-occupied. By the late 1960s, the farmhouse was abandoned,
but the surrounding land remained under cultivation. The evolution of the house’s form

illustrates the adaptation of the existing dwelling to suit new owners and current styles.



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No. QA-618
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic
other Wolcott-Schiwy House

2. Location

street and number 616 Wye Mills Road __not for publication
city, town Wye Mills, MD 21679 X_ vicinity
county Queen Anne’s County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Michael G. and Trudy D. Schiwy
street and number 616 Wye Mills Road telephone
city, town Wye Mills state  MD zip code 21679-0327

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Queen Anne’s County Courthouse liber SM 500 folio 359

city, town Centreville tax map 67 tax parcel 6 tax ID number 05-014735

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public X __agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
X building(s) X _private commerce/trade recreation/culture 2 4 buildings
structure both defense religion 0 0 sites
site X __domestic social 0 1 structures
object education transportation 0 0 objects
funerary work in progress 2 5 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory

0



7. Description Inventory No. QA-618

Condition
__excellent ___ deteriorated
X _good ___ruins
__ fair ___ altered
Summary

Located approximately one-quarter mile northwest of the Talbot County town of Wye Mills, the house and outbuildings stand on the
west side of Wye Mills Road in Queen Anne’s County. Built circa 1900 with a major addition made circa 1970, the two-story, five-
bay, frame, side-gable house features a two-story, full-width, Colonial Revival-style front porch. A two-story, frame wing extends to
the west from the north elevation. One historic outbuilding, four non-historic outbuildings, and a non-historic swimming pool stand
west and south of the house.

Description

Surrounded by agricultural fields, the house and outbuildings are located on the west side of Wye Mills Road on a 38-acre lot. The
house is situated on a level area of a grassy lot with scattered mature trees that slopes down to Wye Mills Road. An asphalt driveway
extends west from Wye Mills Road up a slope, through an allee of cedar trees, and along the south side of the house to a “T”
intersection. The driveway turns north to the garage, located immediately to the west of the house, and turns south toward the
agricultural outbuildings and swimming pool. The southern portion of the driveway then curves southeast and goes down a hill to Wye
Mills Road; this section of the driveway accesses a gravel lot to the south and west of the sheds and barn.

Exterior

‘The house was constructed during at least three building campaigns between the last quarter of the nineteenth century and the late
twentieth century. The two-story, five-bay, side-gable, center-passage, main block reflects all three periods of construction. The
earliest structure, built circa 1880 on a brick foundation, comprises the center stairhall and the northwest room. This room included an
interior brick chimney centered on the north wall; the chimney base remains in the basement. Circa 1900, the building was raised
from one-and-one-half to two stories and expanded by the addition of a two-room rear ell. Circa 1970, a two-bay, single-pile, two-
story addition was constructed to the south of the stairhall, and the entrance and windows for the northwest room became the northern
three bays of the five-bay fagade. The north chimney was removed at this time.

The two-story, five-bay house stands on a continuous, common-bond, brick foundation. The walls are clad in aluminum siding. The
gable roofs are covered in asphalt shingles and have a boxed wood cornice with returns. An exterior, double-flue, brick chimney
stands at the south end of the main block. A full-width, shed-roofed porch shelters the front elevation. The two-story porch is
supported by four square wood posts, and has a brick floor and centered brick steps. A two-story addition in the corner of the main
block and rear ell is attached to a one-story, enclosed porch that covers the first story of the ell’s south elevation. A brick patio stands
in the southwest corner between the enclosed porch and south room on the main block; brick steps provide access to the porch and to
the south room.

The fagade (east elevation) features five bays. The center bay contains a circa 1900, four-panel, wood door with arched top panels.
The door surround is composed of a three-light, fixed, wood transom; three-light-over-one-panel sidelights; and a chamfered and
fluted casing. The windows are six-over-six, double-hung, wood sash windows with metal storm windows and affixed, metal,
louvered shutters. The three northern bays are evenly spaced, while the two southern windows are set further from the door than the
northern windows are. The five bays of the second story align with the first story bays. On the second story, the three north bays
contain one-over-one, double-hung, wood sash windows; the two south bays have six-over-six, double-hung, wood sash windows.
Molded wood trim surrounds the windows and doors on all elevations.

The north elevation of the main block features two symmetrically placed windows on each story that match the six-over-six, wood
sash windows on the fagade. The gable contains a centered double casement window and a louvered vent in the peak. The rear ell
and two-story corner addition cover more than half of the west elevation. The south bay of this elevation (located in the main block)
features a triple sliding-glass door on the first story, and a small, six-over-six, double-hung window that matches the others in trim and
shutters on the second story. The south elevation features an exterior, brick chimney with shoulders that broadens to the west to
include a corner opening about three-and-one-half-feet above the ground for grilling.



8. Significance Inventory No. QA-618

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__ 1600-1699 X agriculture __ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education ___ industry __ philosophy
X 1800-1899 X architecture __engineering __invention __ politics/government
X 1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __ landscape architecture __ religion
_ 2000- ___commerce __ recreation __law __ science
__ communications __ethnic heritage __literature __ social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ ___ maritime history __ transportation
__ conservation __ settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates Architect/Builder

Construction dates circa 1880, circa 1900 and circa 1970

Evaluation for:
National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Statement of Significance

The Wolcott-Schiwy House illustrates the importance of agriculture in Queen Anne’s County history and is an example of a small

_ farm that has been operated by tenants as well as by owners. In 1896, Charles and Elizabeth Wolcott purchased the farm and added to
the existing tenant house. During most of the first half of the twentieth century, the farmhouse was owner-occupied. By the late
1960s, the farmhouse was abandoned, but the surrounding land remained under cultivation. The evolution of the house’s form
illustrates the adaptation of an existing dwelling to suit new owners and current styles.

Narrative

Located approximately one-quarter mile northwest of the Talbot County town of Wye Mills, the Wolcott-Schiwy House stands on
land that was owned by Talbot County residents during the third and fourth quarters of the nineteenth century. John R. Hopkins, a
prosperous Talbot County farmer who owned the mills at Wye Mills (see T-51, Wye Mill and QA-580, Wye Mills Survey District),
owned the property until his death in the 1880s." In 1887, his heirs sold the property to another Talbot County farmer, Thomas
Quimby.? During the ownership of Hopkins and Quimby, the 39-acre tract was likely farmed by a tenant who lived in the side-
passage building that survives as the north portion of the main block of the current house. Nineteenth-century historic maps of the
county do not indicate any buildings at this location, but modest tenant houses such as this one were not always depicted on these
maps. Tenant farming was common in Queen Anne’s County from the mid-nineteenth century through the early twentieth century.
After the Civil War ended in 1865, many of the large plantations of antebellum Queen Anne’s County were sub-divided into smaller
farms or leased to tenants. As a result, new farm complexes and tenant houses were erected throughout the county. For most of the
period between 1865 and 1930, half or more than half of the farmers in Queen Anne’s County did not own the land they worked. The
majority of these tenant farmers were white.’

In 1896, Charles H. Wolcott purchased the property. A New Jersey native, Wolcott was farming in Queen Anne’s County by 1880."
At that time, his household included his wife Elizabeth, four children, and a white servant named Nicholas Lawber. After purchasing
the property, Wolcott expanded the existing tenant house, creating a two-story, side-gable, side-passage dwelling with a two-room rear
ell.” Agricultural outbuildings extant from the Wolcotts’ ownership of the property include an equipment shed built circa 1900 and

' For this and all subsequent deed references, see Chain of Title, Continuation Sheet 8-2.

% 1860 U.S. Population Census, Talbot County, Maryland, Chapel District, Page 274; 1900 U.S. Population Census, Talbot County, Maryland,
Chapel District, Enumeration District 94, Sheet 16-B.

? “Fourteenth Census of the United States, State Compendium: Maryland,” Historical Census Browser (Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia,
Geospatial and Statistical Data Center, 2004), accessed December 2006, <http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html>.

* 1880 U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 3, Enumeration District 161, Page 9.

* U.S. Geological Survey, St. Michaels, MD Quadrangle (15 Minute Series), 1904. By 1904, historic maps record a building located at the 616 Wye
Mills Road site.


http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html

9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. QA-618

See Continuation Sheet 9-1.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 38 acres
Acreage of historical setting 39 acres
Quadrangle name Wye Mills Quadrangle scale: 1:24,000 (7.5 minute)

Verbal boundary description and justification

The property boundary is defined by the current parcel boundaries shown on tax map 67, grid 3, parcel 6 in Queen Anne’s County,
Maryland.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Evelyn D. Causey, Ph.D., Senior Historian, and Gerald M. Maready, Jr., Architectural Historian
organization History Matters, LLC date December 21, 2007
street & number 1502 21* Street, NW, 2™ Floor telephone  (202) 223-8845

city or town Washington state DC

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974
supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do not
constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Department of Planning
100 Community PlaceCrownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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The north elevation of the rear ell consists of three bays that are not symmetrically placed, but are aligned between the first and second
stories. The two easternmost bays are close together and contain windows that match the six-over-six, wood sash windows of the
main block. The west window opening holds a three-quarter-size window on the first story that matches the others in trim. The
second-story windows match the other second-story windows. The west gable end of the ell features a two-over-two, double-hung,
wood sash window with square-edged, wood surround and projecting sill.

A one-story, shed-roofed, addition extends across the south elevation of the ell. The west end of the addition contains a laundry room
that is lit by one window matching the six-over-six wood sash windows, while the east end of the addition contains an enclosed porch
with four, one-over-one, fixed, wood windows and a twelve-light storm door. The second story incorporates two windows that match
the other second-story windows and are asymmetrically placed. The south slope of the ell roof contains solar panels.

Interior

The center hall plan of the main block consists of the circa 1880 stairhall and living room to the north, and the circa 1970 den to the
south. The stairhall extends west through a vestibule with a step down to the enclosed porch. A door in the west wall of the living
room leads to the dining room in the circa 1900 ell. The kitchen occupies the western end of the ell. Doors in the south wall of the
kitchen lead to the porch and to the laundry room at the west end of the enclosed porch. The vestibule, porch, and laundry room were
part of the circa 1970 building campaign, and may have replaced an earlier porch.

The center hall in the main block features an open-stringer stair on the south wall. The stair features a turned, wood newel post, a
molded rail, turned wood balusters, and scroll-sawn spandrels. The floor is carpeted. Trim consists of an approximately four-inch
baseboard with a beaded top edge; molded door surrounds with an interior beaded edge; molded astragal chair rail; and cyma crown
molding. A bathroom occupies the area under the stairs.

The living room in the main block and the dining room in the ell exhibit the same circa 1900 trim as the center hall. Both rooms have
even-width, pine flooring, and four-panel, wood doors between rooms. The dining room features Colonial Revival-style, built-in
corner cupboards in the northeast and northwest corners; the cupboards were probably added during the circa 1970 renovation. The
door trim in the kitchen matches that in the dining and living rooms, but there is a different molded chair rail, no crown molding, and
vinyl tile on the floor.

The wall between the circa 1970 vestibule and the center hall was originally the exterior wall of the circa 1880 house; this wall is
thicker than the west wall of the vestibule. The vestibule and the enclosed porch have built-in closets along their north walls and in
the southeast corner of the porch. The corner closet and the doorway to the center hall have four-panel, wood doors that date to the
circa 1900 house, and were moved to their current locations. The door between the porch and the kitchen matches the others except
the top panels have been replaced with glass. Located in the south addition to the main block, the circa 1970 den features nine- to ten-
inch-wide, pegged flooring; exposed beams; and a brick fireplace with a slate raised hearth and heavy wood mantel.

Outbuildings

Garage (NC)

Located directly to the west of the house, the circa 1970, one-story, front-gable garage is clad in aluminum siding and covered with a
standing-seam metal roof. The south elevation contains a metal, roll-up door. A wood pedestrian door pierces the east elevation at the
north end. A fenced dog kennel on a poured concrete pad extends from the north elevation.
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Swimming Pool (NC) and Pool Pump House (NC)

Located south of the house, the pool and pump house were constructed after the circa 1970 renovation of the house. The pump house
is a one-story, front-gable, frame structure with aluminum siding and a standing-seam metal roof. A metal door with square-edged
metal trim pierces the south elevation. The rectangular, in-ground, concrete pool is surrounded by a low fence with metal railings.

Equipment Shed (C)

A one-story, L-shaped equipment shed stands southwest of the house and is composed of two historic sheds that are attached to each
other. The older shed, constructed circa 1900, is a five-bay, side-gable, post-and-beam structure that is open to the south. The
standing-seam metal roof is supported by heavy, square, wood posts on poured concrete bases. The floor is a mixture of poured
concrete, stone dust, and dirt. The east and west elevations are clad in aluminum siding; the north elevation is sheathed in wood
weatherboard.

The larger, circa 1940 shed extends north from the east side of the circa 1900 shed. The six-bay shed is constructed of similar
materials, but the wood posts and concrete bases are of smaller dimensions. It is open to the east, and features a sliding door made of
T-111 siding that is suspended from a track above the two north bays.

Pole Barn (NC)
A circa 1990, one-and-one-half-story, four-bay pole barn stands west of the equipment sheds. The barn is clad with metal siding and
features a standing-seam metal roof with a center cupola.

Barn/Office (NC)

A barn with office addition are located south of the house and on the east side of the driveway. The circa 1900, two-story, three-bay,
side-gable barn has been extensively remodeled to serve as a warehouse. It is clad with aluminum siding and has an asphalt shingle
roof. The three-bay west elevation (front) incorporates a double door in the south bay and single doors in the center and north bays on
the first story. The two-bay second story consists of single doors aligned above the center and south bays of the first story. A metal I-
beam projects from the top of the south door.

The circa 1990, one-and-one-half-story, two-bay, gable-roofed office addition extends from the south (side) elevation of the barn; its
roof ridge is aligned with that of the barn roof. Standing on a concrete block foundation, the building is clad in aluminum siding and
has an asphalt shingle roof. The office addition’s two-bay west elevation features six-over-six, double-hung, vinyl windows with
vinyl trim and window boxes on the first story, and two gable-roofed dormers on the second story. The entrance is located in the
center of the south gable end and is flanked by windows matching those on the west elevation. A similar window is centered in the
gable.
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possibly the barn, which has been extensively renovated. In 1910, Charles and Elizabeth Wolcott lived on the Wye Mills Road
property with one of their sons.®

In 1916, Charles and Elizabeth Wolcott’s daughter, Elizabeth Shortall, sold the property to James E. and Jennie Holden. In 1910, the
Holdens and their nine children were renting a farm in the area; their purchase of the property marked their transition from tenant
farmer to landowner.” In 1920, James and Jennie Holden and their grandson, James, occupied the house and farmed the property.s

The Wolcotts and Holdens owned the farm during a period of agricultural change in Queen Anne’s County. Between 1900 and 1920,
farm acreage in Queen Anne’s County decreased by 10,000 acres. A majority of farms were 100 to 259 acres in size, so the 616 Wye
Mills tract of 39 acres was a small operation in comparison. The major crops produced in the county between 1900 and 1920 included
corn, wheat, and hay; if the Wolcotts and Holdens raised these crops, their farm’s proximity to the Wye Mills would have been
convenient. After World War I, though, prices for wheat and corn dropped, and Maryland farmers diversified their crops and
increased dairy production. Between 1880 and 1920, the number of dairy cattle in Queen Anne’s County nearly tripled. Small farms
also diversified by growing fruits and vegetables that were canned locally or shipped to Baltimore; with the development and use of
motorized vehicles on farms, the vegetable-growing business became known as truck farming.’

In 1926, Benjamin C. Allen acquired the farm from James Holden’s estate, and by 1930, Allen, his wife Mary, and twelve children
were farming the property. When Allen died in 1945, the farm was conveyed to two of his children, Ethel and Percy, who were
trustees for the estate. Only one outbuilding — an equipment shed — dates to the period when the Allens owned the property.

In 1953, the trustees sold the farm out of the family, and, by 1968, the house was vacant and in disrepair."” Gunther and Regina
Schiwy renovated the dwelling soon after purchasing the 39-acre farm in 1968. They expanded the main block to the south, creating a
center hall plan. The five-bay facade was covered by a two-story, full-width, front porch that is derivative of the one at Mount Vernon.
The Schiwys also constructed a two-story addition and enclosed porch on the southwest side of the house. The swimming pool, pool
pump house, garage, office, and pole barn also date to the Schiwy ownership.

1910 U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 5, Enumeration District 71, Sheet 17-A.

71910 U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 5, Enumeration District 71, Sheet 8-B.

%1920 U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 5, Enumeration District 81, Sheet 5-A.

? Frederick Emory, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland: lts Early History and Development (Baltimore: The Maryland Historical Society, 1950), as
originally published in the Centreville Observer 1886-1887, p. 28; Fourteenth Census of the United States, State Compendium, Maryland
(Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1924), p. 59; U.S. Department of Commerce, Fourteenth Census of the United States, State
Compendium, Maryland (Washington D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1924), pp. 56, 62; Robert I. Brugger, Maryland: A Middle Temperament
1630-1980 (Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins University Press, 1988), pp. 460-461.

19 Conversation with Trudy Schiwy, current owner, on July 12, 2007.



Maryland Historical Trust
‘Maryland Inventory of Inventory No. QA-618
Historic Properties Form

Name: Wolcott-Schiwy House
Continuation Sheet

Number 8 Page2

Chain of Title

3 July 1995 Regina A. Schiwy & Gunther G. Schiwy, Trustees under Regina A.
Schiwy Revocable Trust to Michael G. Schiwy & Trudy D. Schiwy
Liber SM 500, folio 359
39 acres on the left side of the public road from Wye Mills to
Queenstown

3 September 1993 Gunther Schiwy & Regina Schiwy to Gunther & Regina Schiwy,
trustees under Regina A. Schiwy Revocable Trust
Liber MWM 438, folio 600
39 acres

25 July 1968 Mary K. Golt, widow by Marion G. Golt & Catherine A. Golt (attnys in
fact) to Gunther & Regina Schiwy
Liber CWC 36, folio 170
T. Urban Golt & Mary K. Golt executed unrecorded contract of sale
5/15/68; T. Urban Golt died 27 June 1968.
39 acres except 4 small parcels

31 October 1953 Percy E. Allen & Ethel Allen Uber, trustees, to T. Urban & Katherine
Golt
Liber TSP 13, folio 86
Allen & Uber made trustees of Bennett C. Allen’s estate per will (WB
NSDI: 403)
39 acres

31 December 1926 J.H.C. Legg, executor of James E. Holden, and Joshua S. Chance &
Katie C. Chance to Benjamin C. Allen
Liber BHT 6, folio 335
Legg sold land to Chances under terms of Orphan’s Court probating of
Holden’s estate, then Chances sold to Allen
39 acres

27 June 1916 Elizabeth L. & Thomas F. Shortall, Jr. to James E. Holden
Liber WFW 9, folio 234
39 acres

1 July 1915 Madison Brown & J. Frank Harper attnys for Mary C. Bishop & Charles
E. Bishop, Emma L. Orrell & Herman M. Orrell, Elizabeth L. &
Thomas F. Shortall, Jr., Charles H. Wolcott Jr., David B.F. Wolcott &
L. Elizabeth Wolcott and Elizabeth B. Wolcott to Elizabeth L. Shortall
Liber WFW 7, folio 305
39 acres

30 October 1896 Olin Bryan (Baltimore) trustee for Charles J. B. Mitchell & H.B.W.

Mitchell trading as Mitchell Brothers to Charles H. Wolcott
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Liber WHC 3, folio 182
39 acres

2 December 1895 William F. Barley, Sheriff of Queen Anne’s County to Harry B.W.
Mitchell
Liber WHC 3, folio 568
Settlement of Circuit Court case 30 August 1895 R. A. Davidson &
W.T. Davidson (Davidsons Co.) vs Robert H. Rhodes

39 acres
15 August 1893 Thomas & Sarah E. Quimby to Robert H. Rhodes
Liber LD 2, folio 130
39 acres
8 June 1887 J. Clarence Hopkins & Anna G. Hopkins, Howard R. Hopkins & Mary

M. Hopkins, S. Wilson Hopkins, Mary R. Hopkins of Talbot County,
Elma B. Parrott & George A. Parrott of Kent Co. and R. Anna Deakyne
& Fletcher Deakyne of New Castle Co, Del. to Thomas Quimby

Liber SCD 10, folio 405

Heirs of John R. Hopkins

No previous instrument



Maryland Historical Trust
MarYIand |nvent0ry Of Inventory No. QA-618
Historic Properties Form

Name: Wolcott-Schiwy House
Continuation Sheet

Number 9 Page 1

Major Bibliographical References

Brugger, Robert J. Maryland: A Middle Temperament 1630-1980. Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins University Press, 1988.

Emory, Frederick. Queen Anne’s County, Maryland: Its Early History and Development. Baltimore: The Maryland Historical
Society, 1950. Originally published in the Centreville Observer, 1886-1887.

Fourteenth Census of the United States. State Compendium, Maryland. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1924.

Historical Census Browser. Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia, Geospatial and Statistical Data Center, 2004. Accessed
December 2006 and 11 October 2007. < http:/fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html>.

U.S. Department of Commerce. Fourteenth Census of the United States. State Compendium, Maryland. Washington DC:
Government Printing Office, 1924.

U.S. Geological Survey, St. Michaels, MD Quadrangle (15 Minute Series), 1904,
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